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Project Background

The United States Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) under its Enhanced-Use Leasing (EUL) authority (38 U.S.C. 8161 8169), intends to award an EUL to a developer to finance, design, build, operate, and maintain a mixed use development at the Knoxville, IA VAMC Campus.  The Knoxville Veterans Affairs Medical Center, (Knoxville VAMC) is part of the Central Iowa VA Healthcare Network (VISN 23). 

The Knoxville VAMC is located in the City of Knoxville, Iowa approximately 38 miles away from Iowa’s state capital, Des Moines. Comprising over 163 contiguous acres, the Knoxville VAMC is owned and operated by VA.  The mixed-use campus houses approximately 787,000 square feet of improvements in 39 buildings.  All 39 improvements are grouped on the eastern portion of the site leaving the central and western portions unimproved.  The preferred developer will provide VA with the best proposal to finance, develop, operate, and maintain a mixed-use campus.  VA does not have a preference for the type of development for this property.  Possible uses include the development retail, commercial and medical office, senior housing, hospitality and residential and/or retail, although VA is open to any creative activities that are consistent with VA’s mission and operations.
Public Meeting and Industry Forum
The meeting was held from 9:00 am on 3 December 2010 in the Learning Center’s conference room at the Knoxville VAMC.  Approximately 35 interested parties including VA staff and consultants attended the meeting.  The Knoxville VAMC staff captured a complete list of attendees.
The purpose of the meeting was to:

· Obtain comments from all interested parties regarding the draft RFP and other documents covering a possible EUL for Knoxville VAMC Campus
· Provide opportunity for all attendees to share comments 

· Notify key stakeholders and interested parties of VA’s intent to utilize the EUL process for consideration at the Knoxville VAMC

· Describe the EUL program

· Describe the EUL project

· Provide a site tour

After a brief introduction and welcoming remarks from David Huffman the Facilities Manager of the Knoxville VAMC and opening remarks from Peter Yakowicz, the VISN 23 Capital Asset Manager, the Project Manager, Maina Gakure, began the meeting with a slide presentation.  The slide presentation covered the following topics: Purpose of Public Meeting, Industry Forum Objectives, EUL Program Overview, Proposed EUL Project, Analysis Performed, Milestones, and Teaming Arrangements.  The slide presentation is attached as Exhibit A.  Following the presentation the meeting was opened for questions.
Questions and Answers

The following questions and answers were presented during the Question & Answer portion of the Public Meeting/Industry Forum:
Question 1:  Is it permissible for any entity to bid on the project including non-profit 501(c)3 entities?

Answer:  Yes, any legally formed entity may bid on the EUL.

Question 2:   Is there any preference regarding an award for Small Businesses, or Veteran owned firms.

Answer:  The award will be made based on the criteria in the RFP, this is not a FAR transaction.

Question 3:  Page 5 – 6 of the Draft RFP describes in-kind consideration in terms of real estate.  Is real estate the only kind of in-kind consideration allowed under the EUL?

Answer:  No.  In-kind consideration can take many forms, such as: services, real estate, etc.  All types of consideration are acceptable.

Question 4:  While the state and local community needs are contemplated in the Section 2.3.4 of the RFP, what about national relationships?  Can 2.3.4 be changed to include national (or federal) relationships? 
Answer:  Yes.  This section can include relationships on a national level.

Question 5:  Can Section VII of the RFP response, Achievement of VA Requirements, Goals and Objectives, be changed from the current 5-page limit to 10 pages?
Answer:  Yes.  The page limit will be increased to 10 pages.

Question 6:  There are references to “Ohio” on pages 45, 80, and 81 are these hold overs from a previous RFP?

Answer:  Yes.  These references to Ohio will be removed.

Question 7:  What is the requirement for a post award quality control plan?

Answer:  Post award quality control coordinated is handled by a different office in OAEM.  It is not the focus of the selection process.
Question 8:  Can the oral presentations occur prior to the scoring of the technical proposals?  We are concerned that since we forming a new venture and proposing a new national homeless veteran program that has never been done before and therefore we don’t have the now required 2-3 years of past performance we will be penalized in the technical scoring.

Answer:  The oral presentations will still follow the technical proposal scoring, but we will consider changing the minimum experience requirements.
Question 9:  Are there “Green Building” requirements for the campus?

Answer:  Yes. Section 2.3.5 of RFP deals with Energy Conservation and Sustainable Design Requirements. 
Question 10: In calculating ROI (return on investment) for in-kind consideration, what is considered legitimate in-kind consideration and rates?
Answer:  The bidder is required to address the in-kind consideration provided to the VA in the RFP response, rather than the VA telling the bidders what is in-kind consideration is required. 
Question 11:  Will bidder qualifications for Joint Ventures and Teams with Subcontractors be evaluated the same way?

Answer:  Yes.  The past performance and qualification of the members of a JV will be considered. 

Question 12:  Will Davis-Bacon Act be enforced on this project?

Answer:  As indicated in paragraph 2.3.3 of the draft RFP Davis-Bacon will be enforced.  

“VA will require that the “prevailing wages” paid in connection with construction of the Project be not less than applicable rates by region, trade and building type established pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. § 276a, et seq.”
Question 13:  There is concern that the locals obtain jobs from this project.

Answer:  The VA can only encourage, but it has no authority to enforce.
Question 14:  Are historical utility expenses available?
Answer:  Not currently available but will work with VAMC staff to determine if they can be made available. 

Question 15:  Is the Phase II environmental assessment available?

Answer:  The Phase II EA has been completed and is currently being reviewed internally by the VA staff.  Once the review is completed it will be made available to interested bidders.

Question 16:  Is there a requirement to help a specific number of veterans?

Answer:  No, the benefits to veterans will be weighed in the evaluation process.

Question 17:  Is there any way to talk to other veterans’ groups so they can be involved in the process?

Answers:  After selection veterans’ groups will have an opportunity to speak to the VA and the selected developer.
Question 18:  Can the selected developer allow tax-exempt entities to use the campus such as a college or university?  This would erode the tax base for the city and county.

Answer:  The VA has no restrictions regarding the tax status of entities proposed to occupy the campus.  This is an issue for the city.  Developers are encouraged to work with city officials regarding their plans for the campus to ensure their concerns are addressed.

Question 19:  How will ex parte communications during the facility tour be handled?
Answer:  The VA is committed to having a full and open competition, any significant questions asked during the facility tour will be included in the Q&As posted on the Knoxville EUL website for the benefit of all interested bidders.

Question 20:  Will the condition of the existing campus utilities be disclosed?

Answer:  No. 
Question 21:  Are there any post award quality control reviews required and if so what will be entailed in the review?

Answer:  Post-transaction the EUL maintenance will become the responsibility for another team within OAEM (Post Award Transaction Team).  The selected developer will be responsible for completing an annual report to include in-kind consideration provided to the VA and how the developer is accomplishing the EUL development plan.
Question 22:  How should the in-kind consideration be calculated for volunteers who provide assistance to veterans as part of the campus development plan?

Answer: In-kind consideration may include the provision of goods or services.  In-kind consideration is NOT cash but rather services or even cost avoidance that benefits the VA.  In-kind consideration should be thought from a campus-wide perspective based on the overall benefit provided to the VA based on the number of veterans assisted and the type of assistance provided.  Dr. Gakure provided the following examples of in-kind consideration:

Currently the VA is spending approximately $1.2 million annually to maintain the VAMC campus.  Once the VA no longer has to maintain the campus the $1.2 million will become available to assist veterans in other programs.  This cost avoidance is an example of in-kind consideration.

Another example of in-kind consideration would be if a college on the campus allowed veterans to attend classes at a discount.  The amount of the discount is in-kind consideration since it provides a material benefit to veterans.
Offering housing to veterans at below market rates is another example of in-kind consideration.

Question 23:  Is there a formula for providing in-kind?

Answer:  No.  In-kind consideration could be providing a facility, a service, or something else.
Question 24:  If we give building 102 back to the VA for use as a CBOC, can that be the in-kind?

Answer:  Yes.  Be creative.  While we are looking for a (Community Based Outpatient Clinic) it could be a part of the EUL in-kind or not.  We are not requiring a CBOC as the in-kind for this EUL and it is up to the developer.  

Question 25:  Can representatives from the city of Knoxville attend the source selection or oral presentations?

Answer:  Source selection falls under the purview of the (federal) government officials only and is not a public process.  The VA will not allow the City to review and comment on the proposals.  
Question 26:  Can city representatives be involved in the selection process prior to source selection?

Answer:  All developers are encouraged to collaborate with the city representatives and other stakeholders as they work on their proposals to ensure city concerns and needs are addressed up front.  The city’s involvement will be addressed after selection process during the creation of the development plan and the negotiation of lease agreement.  

Question 27:  Can city representatives be allowed to independently score the submitted proposals similar to the process used during the BRAC process?

Answer:  No.  Source selection falls under the purview of the government officials.
Question 28:  Who will be on the source selection committee:

Answer: The exact committee members have not been decided yet. 
Question 29:  Is the City of Knoxville planning to submit a proposal?

Answer: Mr. Schrad indicated that there are currently no plans for the City to submit a its own development proposal but the city counsel will make the final determination.

Question 30:  Can the length of the lease vary?

Answer:  Yes.  By law the length of the lease cannot exceed 75 years.  The developer will negotiate the lease terms with the VA to include the term.

Question 31:  Is there any known asbestos in the buildings or utilizes?
Answer:  Yes.  Many of the pipes have asbestos insulation.  The extent of the remaining asbestos is not readily available, but maybe contained in the Phase II EA.

Question 32:  What condition are the steam pipes in and have they been replaced recently?

Answer:  The water in the steam pipes has been treated to prevent corrosion and with the exception of last year the VAMC staff indicated they have not had to replace any steam pipes in the last 13 years due to corrosion.  Developers can hire their own firms to conduct and independent study at their own expense.

Question 33:  What is the age of the steam plant?

Answer:  The original steam plant was built in 1922 but the existing equipment has been replaced at various times though out the life of the campus.  Developers were offered to attend the site tour to see the plant operation and equipment.
Question 34:  What is the status of the propane tanks used as back up to the natural gas supply to the steam plant?

Answer:  The plan is to sell back the remaining propane and dispose of the tanks prior to the EUL effective date.

Question 35:  What is the status of the diesel tanks used to supply the various backup generators?

Answer:  The majority of the diesel tanks are empty with the exception of the tanks at building 1, 4, 77 which are full.

Question 36:  What is the status of the backup generators?

Answer:  All generators are in working condition as of this date.

Question 37:  Does the VAMC have an inventory of all existing utilities and what their expected end of life is?

Answer:  No.  However, the utility survey will provide a good indication of their current condition.

Question 38:  Are any of the sewers that are combined storm and sanitary sewer?

Answer:  No.

Question 39:  Will the current maintenance continue until the EUL is executed?

Answer:  Yes, but it will be somewhat reduced.

Question 40:  Why doesn’t the water treatment plant exist?  Can the city plant treat the sanitary sewer?

Answer:  The city system doesn’t have capacity to handle the additional discharge.  The discharge from the VAMC varies between 2,000 to 600,000 gallons per day.  The excess discharge is caused from inflow and infiltration (INI).  The sewer system that runs in front of the buildings has been replaced with PVC pipe, but the pipe is the rear of the buildings is older clay pipe and subject to Inflow and Infiltration (INI).

Question 41:  What percentage of pipe has current Inflow and Infiltration INI problems?
Answer:  Unknown at this time.
Question 42:  Will the license to operate the water treatment plant transfer to the lease?

Answer:  Yes, but the new plant manager/operator will be required to have all of the appropriate licenses and certifications to operate a water treatment plant in Iowa.

Question 43:  Have there been any know DNR permit violations?

Answer:  No.

Question 44:  What is the cost to replace the existing clay tile pipe?

Answer:  Unknown at this time.

Question 45:  Can the developer hire an independent inspector to survey the campus infrastructure?
Answer:  Yes, however the developer must coordinate any inspections/site visits with the VAMC by contacting David Huffman.

Question 46:  Will the Phase II EA include lead paint, asbestos and soil sample results?

Answer:  Yes.
Site Tour

The meeting adjourned at the conclusion of the Q&A period at approximating 12:25 pm. Participants were invited to return at 1:00 pm for a site tour.  A site tour was conducted of all of the main buildings to include the laundry, heat plant and the residential housing units.  The site tour concluded at approximately 3:30 pm.
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